
 

       RICE LAKE TOURISM 
Rice Lake Tourism 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday, September 15, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Room, 30 East Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868 

 
1.​ Call to Order 

 
2.​ Public Appearances  

 
3.​ August 21, 2025 Minutes 

 
4.​ Tom Paulsen here to go over the Blue Hills Trail Association application request 

 
5.​ John Mitchell here to go over the Pioneer Village Museum application request 

 
6.​ Deb Fosberg is here to go over our advertising with APG Media 

 
7.​ 2026 Travel Wisconsin Co-op 

 
8.​ Tourism Coordinator Report 

 
9.​ Bills 

 
10.​Commission Member Comments 

 
11.​ Future Commission Meeting Dates/Member Comments 

​  
Tourism Coordinator, Brandi Nelson 

 
             
​ cc:    Mayor/Common Council​ City Clerk-Treasurer Kessler 

        City Administrator Johnson​ Commission Members (5)​  
        Hotel/Motel Members (7)​ News Media (2) 
        Rice Lake Chamber of Commerce​ Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Ullom 

 
Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the American With Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the 
meeting to be in an accessible location or format must contact: Kathleen V. Morse, City Clerk-Treasurer, 30 E. Eau Claire Street, Rice 
Lake, (715) 234-7088 by 2:00 p.m. the Friday prior to the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate 
each request.  It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of the governmental bodies of the municipality may be 
in attendance at the above-stated meeting to gather information.  No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated 
meeting other than the governmental body specifically referenced in this notice. 
 
 
 

 



Tourism – August 21, 2025 
The August 21, 2025 Tourism Commission Meeting was held at 4:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Room.  Members 
Present: Dana Heller, Justine Bundgaard, Becky Squires, and Marie Nett.  Also Present: Brandi Nelson, Craig 
Fowler, Rob Mueller. Absent: Eric Pelle. Dana Heller called the meeting to order. 
 

1.​ Public Appearances – none. 
 

2.​ July Minutes - Motion by Justine Bundgaard, seconded by Marie Nett to approve the July 14, 2025 minutes, 
as submitted. 

Voting for:  All 
Voting against:  none 
Motion carried. 

 
3.​ Craig Fowler and Dan Mueller were present to talk to us about the new park called Lakeview Heritage Park 

located at the old hospital land north of town. They are just presenting to groups getting the word and info 
out, requesting no money at this time. A public meeting for this is on Wednesday, September 3, 5pm-7pm 
at City Hall. 
 

4.​ Deb Fosberg provided our current advertising analytics for the digital, social, and print advertising we do 
with Adams Multimedia via email prior to our meeting for us to review and talk about. She was unable to 
attend this month. 
 

5.​ Briefly went over the 2026 budget. We are putting more money into marketing and advertising. Everything 
else will stay about the same. We also discussed paying for a strategic plan so we have a road map on 
how we spend our money and what our overall goal is. Also entertained an idea of a community 
development fund, more on that possibly in the future. 
 

6.​ Tourism Coordinator report: 
-Talked about bringing an influencer into Rice Lake to shoot some content for us. Brandi has been in 
contact with a few different ones. Asked for a budget to work with on locking one down. 
 
Motion by Marie Nett; seconded by Justine Bundgaard to approve $1,200 to bring an influencer into Rice 
Lake for marketing purposes. 
​ Voting for: Marie Nett, Dana Heller, Justine Bundgaard 
​ Voting against: none 
​ Motion carried. 
 
-We need to start paying for Mailchimp due to the amount of subscribers we have for our newsletter. That 
cost will be $26.50 and month. 
 
Motion by Marie Nett; seconded by Justine Bundgaard to approve paying for a subscription to Mailchimp. 
​ Voting for: Marie Nett, Dana Heller, Justine Bundgaard 
​ Voting against: none 
​ Motion carried. 
 
-Would like to start playing around with paid advertising on Facebook on my own rather than through 
Adams MultiMedia. Requesting any amount to start with to see what it can do for us. 
 
Motion by Justine Bundgaard; seconded by Marie Nett to approve $100 towards Facebook advertising. 
​ Voting for: Marie Nett, Dana Heller, Justine Bundgaard 
​ Voting against: none 
​ Motion carried. 



-Requesting approval on attending the Destinations Wisconsin Fall Tourism conference November 6 & 7 in 
Madison costing $160 to register. 
 
Motion by Justine Bundgaard; seconded by Marie Nett to approve $320 to register Brandi Nelson & Dana 
Heller for the Fall conference. 
​ Voting for: Marie Nett, Dana Heller, Justine Bundgaard 
​ Voting against: none 
​ Motion carried. 

 
7.​ Bills – Motion by Marie Nett; seconded by Justine Bundgaard to approve bills as submitted. 

Voting for: Dana Heller, Becky Squires, Justine Bundgaard, and Marie Nett 
Voting against: none 
Motion carried. 

 
8.​ Future date TBD in September at 4:00pm, room also TBD based on the date 

 
9.​ Motion by Dana Heller to adjourn. 

Voting for: all 
Voting against:  none 
Motion carried. 

 
Minutes taken by Brandi Nelson, Tourism Coordinator 



 

BLUE HILLS 
TRAIL ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 
P.O. Box 251    Bruce, WI 54819-0251 

 
 

 

August 22, 2025 
 
Dear Rice Lake Tourism, 
 
The Blue Hills Trail Association (BHTA) would like to express our sincere appreciation for your past 
financial support. It’s special that you value these outdoor recreational opportunities and prioritize 
your funding.  We realize that the Blue Hills Trail Association is just one of many nonprofits in need of 
your help – and we are grateful that you consider our organization’s efforts worthy of your support. 
 
Your 2024-25 donation of $1000 was greatly appreciated. At this time, we are requesting a donation 
of $1000 for your 2025-26 funding cycle. 
 
As you may know the BHTA was established by a group of private citizens in 1987 (originally the 
Rusk County Trail Association, we reincorporated as BHTA fall of 2006). BHTA is a 501c3 non-profit 
organization that is dependent on annual membership dues, donations, and the cooperation of the 
Rusk County Forestry Department for its continued existence. Our volunteers work long hours 
maintaining the 20-mile Blue Hills Trail system for year-round, non-motorized use. 
 
Noted as some of the best ski trails in the upper Midwest region, the Blue Hills Trail system greatly 
benefits area residents, while also attracting skiers from areas with less dependable snowfall. This 
showcases the Blue Hills and surrounding area to the Trail’s many visitors from near and far — and 
the local economies benefit greatly. 
 
Our annual operating budget often exceeds $25,000. Annual fundraising proceeds go toward 
summer/fall trail maintenance and mowing, heating and maintaining the warming house at the Blue 
Hills trailhead, and winter grooming of the twenty miles of trails in the Blue Hills. 
 
Please accept this opportunity to support the Blue Hills Trail Association. If possible, we’d like to 
receive your commitment to donate by late October, recognizing your donation at our November 1st 
annual fundraising event. Feel free to contact us with your questions and suggestions for an even 
better trail system! 
 
A sincere thank you, 
 
Bjorn Hanson, BHTA President 
 

Fundraising contacts: 
Tom Paulsen      Amanda Wieckowicz (secretary) 
tom@bluehillstrail.com    alw@cheteklaw.com 
Visit our website at bluehillstrail.com                            Federal Employer ID# 38-3740844 



Rice Lake Tourism (715) 234-8888 30 E. Eau Claire Street (715) 651-9856 Rice Lake, WI 
54868 info@ricelaketourism.org  

Rice Lake Tourism Grant Application  

The Rice Lake Tourism Commission created this grant application to provide assistance to 
tourism related events and projects in the City. The grants are funded by Room Tax dollars 
collected from local hotels.  

Applications may be submitted at any time but must be submitted no less then one week prior to 
our next commission meeting to be considered at that meeting. The Commission will make a 
determination on requests based on the likelihood that the project will increase overnight stays, 
the overall economic impact expected within the City, and the availability of funds at the time of 
the request.  

Please submit the completed application and any supplemental material you would like the 
Tourism Commission to consider to Brandi Nelson, Coordinator of Rice Lake Tourism, at 
info@ricelaketourism.org, or mail or deliver in person to Rice Lake Tourism, 30 E. Eau Claire 
Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868. 

Application Information 

Organization:  
Blue Hills Trail Association, Inc. 

Contact: 
Tom Paulsen 
 

Email:  
tom@bluehillstrail.com 

Phone: 
715-532-6595 (home) 
715-415-5812 (cell) 

Mailing Address: 
PO Box 251 
Bruce, WI 54819 

Event/Project Name:  
1) Fundraising banquet November 1, 2025 
2) Winter cross-country skiing / snowshoeing plus year-round non-motorized trail activities at the Blue Hills Trail 
 
 
Event/Project Location: 
1) Banquet at Lehman’s Supper Club, 2911 S Main St., Rice Lake, WI 54868 
2) Four seasons use of 20+ miles of non-motorized trails at the Blue Hills Trail in northwest Rusk County 

Event/Project Date: 
1) Annual fundraising banquet November 1, 2025 at Lehman’s Supper Club in Rice Lake 
2) Year-round enjoyment of the Blue Hills Trail 

Date of Request: 
August 22, 2025 

 



 

Rice Lake Tourism (715) 234-8888 30 E. Eau Claire Street (715) 651-9856 Rice Lake, WI 
54868 info@ricelaketourism.org  

Event/Project Information 

Description of event/project: 
Our annual budget is $25,000+. Winter is our focus when we strive to offer some of the best cross-country skiing 
in the Midwest. Autumn also is an especially nice time to enjoy the trail system 
 
Periodic equipment purchases greatly increase our expenses. We currently are in the process of spending more 
than $50,000 to replace our workhorse UTV. 

Describe how this project will promote overnight stays: 
The Blue Hills Trail system attracts silent sports enthusiasts from throughout the upper Midwest. Cross country 
skiing, snowshoeing, hiking, biking, and fall hunting are the main activities enjoyed. Our guestbook in the 
warming house documents visitors from the nearby counties, as well as many visitors from the Twin Cities, 
southern Wisconsin, Minnesota, and Illinois – and occasional visitors from very distant locations. 

How will the requested money be spent: 
Our annual budget is $25,000+. Your donation will go toward summer/fall trail maintenance and mowing, heating 
and maintaining the warming house at the Blue Hills trailhead, and winter grooming of the 20+ miles of trails at 
the Blue Hills Trail. 

Number of attendees expected:  
Our annual banquet attracts between 40-80 
attendees. 

Number of volunteer/workers expected: 
15-30+ volunteers help in various capacities 
throughout the year 

Number of overnight room nights expected: 
We have about 110-130 households that take out 
annual memberships. Most of those members are 
from the nearby counties – but a significant number of 
our members are from the Twin Cities, southern and 
southeast Wisconsin, and Illinois. In addition, a very 
conservative estimate is 500 visits per year from non-
members with many of those visitors living a 
significant distance from the Blue Hills Trail. On a busy 
winter weekend, you’ll see many out of state licenses 
in the parking lot by our warming house. 
 

Total event/project budget: 
$25,000 + 

Website:  
bluehillstrail.com 

Amount requested: 
$1000 

Applicant Signature & Title:  
Tom Paulsen – secretary emeritus 
 

Date: 
22 August 2025 

 
  



Rice Lake Tourism      (715) 234-8888 
30 E. Eau Claire Street      (715) 651-9856 
Rice Lake, WI 54868      info@ricelaketourism.org 

Rice Lake Tourism Assistance Grant Application 

The Rice Lake Tourism Commission created this grant application to provide assistance to tourism related 
events and projects in the City. The grants are funded by Room Tax dollars collected from local hotels.  

Applications may be submitted at any time but must be submitted no less then one week prior to our next 
commission meeting to be considered at that meeting. The Commission will make a determination on 
requests based on the likelihood that the project will increase overnight stays, the overall economic 
impact expected within the City, and the availability of funds at the time of the request.  

Please submit the completed application and any supplemental material you would like the Tourism 
Commission to consider to Brandi Nelson, Coordinator of Rice Lake Tourism, at info@ricelaketourism.org, 
or mail or deliver in person to Rice Lake Tourism, 30 E. Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868. 

Application Information

Organization: 

Pioneer Village Museum

Contact: 

John Mitchell, Development

Email: 

iamwords@mac.com

Phone: 

323-898-5038 Mobile 
715-458-2080 Museum

Mailing Address: 

1866 13 1/2 - 14th Avenue - P.O. Box 242 
Cameron WI 54822

Event/Project Name: 

Pioneer Village Museum sponsorship for all events in 2024 (see attached Event Schedule poster) 
Also as part of the Welcome Center Project

Event/Project Location: 

Pioneer Village Museum 
1866 13 1/2 - 14th Avenue 
Cameron WI 54822

Event/Project Date: 

All Events Throughout 2026 + Welcome Center Project + Ojibwe Village

Date of Request: 

09.10.25



Rice Lake Tourism      (715) 234-8888 
30 E. Eau Claire Street      (715) 651-9856 
Rice Lake, WI 54868      info@ricelaketourism.org 

Process: 

● Submit application and any supporting documents no less than one week prior to the next 
Tourism Commission meeting. 

● Applicants may be asked to attend that meeting to answer any  questions from the Tourism 
Commission. 

● Requests will typically be considered for approval at the same meeting. 
● As a condition of approval, applicants will likely be requested to appear at a meeting after the 

event or completion of the project to report on the success of the event and the efficacy of the 
grant funding.

Event/Project Information

Description of event/project: 

20 plus events throughout the year including highly attended events listed below that will attract overnight stays, as 
well as dozens of other smaller events, rentals, educational tours, and thousands of tourist visits each year. 

Red Cedar Rendezvous (week long pioneer event) 
Cameron Bluegrass Festival 
Christmas In The Village 
Native American Heritage Celebration & Powwow 
Ojibwe Village to Open To Public in late Spring of 2026

Describe how this project will promote overnight stays: 

“All Encompassing” sponsorship that would promote Visit Rice Lake: 
* Inclusion for all events (signage, brochures, event programs) 
* Promote Rice Lake hotels as the “Place To Stay” when visiting 
* Expand accordingly when the new facility comes to fruition 

Note:  We promote hotel stays on the website with logo and link on the homepage to Rice Lake Tourism website 
Hotel Page. We expect the Ojibwe Village to be a big draw from out of state tourists.

Number of attendees expected: Number of volunteer/workers expected:

Number of overnight room nights expected: 

It’s hard to give an exact figure, but that will increase 
sizable with the addition of the Ojibwe Village and during 
construction of the Welcome Center Project.

Total event/project budget: 

Museum budget is about $240,000 yearly for all 20+ 
events throughout the year 

Describe other funding sources: 

Gate Fees, Sponsorships, Grants, Sponsorships 
Gift Shop & Concessions Sales, Private Donations

Amount requested: 

$5,000

Applicant Signature & Title: 

John Mitchell, Development

Date: 

September 10, 2025



Pioneer Village Museum

2025 EVENT SCHEDULE

Aquafest Flea Market
June 7 10:00 am-3:00 pm

(Museum Closes 5:00 pm)

Pionger Village Museum

2025 EVENT SCHEDULE

Ol' Time Fair (Vintage Baseball Sunday)
August 16-17 10:00 am -5:00 pm (Both Days)

(Games + Food + Fun + Ol' Time Costumes)

a

Native American Heritage Celebration
June 21 10:00 am-5:00 pm

(PowWow + Teachings + Vendors)

Quilt Show & Strawberry Fest
June 28-29 10:00 am -5:00 pm (Both Days)

(Trunk Show + 100's of Quilts + Strawberries)

Ladies History Luncheon
August 23 10:00 am -5:00 pm

(Lunch + Performances + Presentations)

Bluegrass Festival
September 5-6-7 (Three Day Extravaganza)
Friday 5 pm-9 pm/Saturday 10 am-8 pm/Sunday 11 am -5 pm

Pioneer Heritage Days
July 12-13 10:00 am -5:00 pm (Both Days)

(Period Clothing + Reenactments + Tractor Parade)

Veteran's Picnic

September 14 11:00 am-2:00 pm

Red Cedar Rendezvous
August 1-3 10:00 am -5:00 pm (All Three Days)

(Blacksmithing + Reenactments + Period Costumes)

Past Reflection's Car Show

August 9 10:00 am-3:00 pm

(Museum Closes 5:00 pm)

(Church Service + Lunch + Camaraderie)

Christmas In The Village
December 12-13 Friday 4-8 pm & Saturday 2-6 pm

(Horse & Sleigh + Lights + Music + Market + Much More)

PIONEER VILLAGE MUSEUM

WELCOME CENTER

ADDITIONAL EVENTS THROUGHOUT 2025

FOR THE NEW "WELCOME CENTER"

BUILDING PROJECT

Rice Lake
TOURISM pioneervillagemuseum.org | 715-458-2080

Rice Lake
TOURISM

Rice Lake
TOURISM pioneervillagemuseum.org | 715-458-2080

Rice Lake
TOURISM





Pioneer Village Museum’s 

WELCOME CENTER PROJECT
WELCOME TO THE FUTURE
Building A New Welcome Center

* Establish The Museum As A Tourism Welcome Center
* Help The Museum Transition To A Year-Round Facility
* More Events Including Additional Seasonal Attractions
* Become A Center For Local & Regional Family Histories
* Expanded Archival Access, Including Digital Archives
* Much Needed Public Use & Educational Space
* More Awareness Means More Exposure Means More Fun
* Be Known To Future Generations As Someone Awesome
* Make PVM The Shining Star of Northwest Wisconsin

WHY GET INVOLVED
Bringing History To Life

* A Way To Give Back To Community
* Increased Tourism Draw To The Area
* Plenty Of Advertising Opportunities
* Create Jobs Throughout The Project
* Educational Opportunities Galore
* Expand Community Consciousness
* You Can’t Take It With You

Discover The Present Through The Past

HOW TO PARTICIPATE
Share The Knowledge

* Contribute To The General Fund
* Name A Room, Or The Building
* Host A Fundraiser, Get Exposure
* Put It On Your Year-End Giving List
* Encourage Friends & Family To Become 

A Contributing Member

Call For More Info:  715-458-2080
pioneervillagemuseum.org/welcome

Barron County Historical Society, Inc is a 501(c)(3) - Fed ID# 23-7204418



Fund 29, Tourism - September2025
Vendor Activity Detail Amount Total

Pre-Paid Claims

Prepaid Transactions Total $0.00

P-Card Transactions
Verizon 9.1.25 Invoice - Cell
Mosaic 9.1.25 Invoice - Phone / Internet
APG Media 8.31.25 invoice - Print/Digital/&Social Advertising $11,700.00
Elevate5 9.5.25 Website site care service $307.00
Mailchimp 9.8.25 Newletter Website Subscription $27.96

Pcard Transactions Total $12,034.96

Direct Debits
Barron Electric 9.1.25 Invoice - Electricity - Rice Lake sign

Direct Debit Transactions Total $0.00

Vouchers Waiting for Pymt
Barron County Economic 
Developement Corp.

August 2025 Coordinator & Destinations WI Conference 
Reimbursement

$3,910.00

Zoe Communications Radio Advertising $627.59
DCS Netlink 2025 Google Workspace $72.00

Vouchers Waiting for Pymt Total $4,609.59
Total Expenditures $16,644.55


